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JUDGE WOOD
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

RAJENDRA N. GANGARAMANI, No.

Individually and on Behalf of All Others

Similarly Situated, CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
VIOLATIONS OF FEDERAL

Plaintiff, SECURITIES LAWS

V.

URY TRIAL DSALcA DV
NQ MOBILE INC., OMAR KHAN, HENRY .1'I,YU LIN and SUHAI JI, V

Defendants.
U

A,
Plaintiff Rajendra N. Gangaramani, by and through his undersigne a (00,14:i leges tYe

following upon information and belief, except as to those allegations concerning PlaintiIi911 are

alleged upon personal knowledge. Plaintiff's information and belief is based upon, among other

things, his counsel's investigation, which includes without limitation: (a) review and analysis of

regulatory filings made by NQ Mobile Inc., with the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC), (b) review and analysis of press releases and media reports issued by and

disseminated by NQ Mobile Inc., and (c) review of other publicly available information concerning

NQ Mobile Inc.

SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1. This is a class action on behalf of all purchasers of NQ Mobile Inc. securities between

May 5, 2011 and October 24, 2013, inclusive (the "Class Period"), seeking to pursue remedies under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act).

2. Defendant NQ Mobile ("NQ" or the "Company") is a Beijing, China-based mobile

Internet services company. NQ is a leading global provider of mobile Internet services. NQ Mobile's

portfolio includes mobile security and mobile games as well as advertising for the consumer market
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and consulting, mobile platforms and mobility services for the enterprise market NQ's shares are

listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), located in New York, New York. The transactions

complained of by plaintiff and members of the Class was conducted on the NYSE.

3. The Company was founded in 2005 and listed on the NYSE in 2011 in an $89 million

IPO that was underwritten by Piper Jaffray Companies, and raised an additional $69 million in a

secondary offering in 2012. In fact, over the last three years, NQ has raised $330.6 million from

stock and bond fund-raising. Defendants were well aware that their last opportunity to raise capital

additional funds from the public was almost up, once the truth concerning NQ's true operations was

exposed.

4. During the Class Period, Defendants were tipped off that the Muddy Waters Research

Group (MWRG) well known for exposing Chinese companies as frauds was probing NQ's

finances and operations and had targeted the Defendants' relationship with Tianjin Yidatong

Technology Development Co., Ltd ("YDT" or "Yidatong"). With the Company's true operations

about to be disclosed, instead of the traditional financing they had engaged in before (IPOs and

Secondary Offerings), Defendants knew that such financings required a registration statement and

executing another Secondary could take as long as 6 months or longer. Accordingly, Defendants

opted for the quickest vehicle to raise as much as an additional $200 million a Private Placement

under Rule 144a. Defendants' plan had worked, at least in part; Defendants' last successful attempt

to sell inflated securities would and did arise within just days of NQ being put under the spotlight as

a fraudulent company.

5. By the Fall of 2013, NQ Mobile maintained it had a large, global user base of 372

million registered user accounts and 122 million monthly active user accounts through its consumer
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mobile security business, 87 million registered user accounts and 16 million monthly active user

accounts through its mobile games and advertising business, and over 1,250 enterprise customers.

Analysts were, on average, expecting nearly 100% growth for the near future. With these claims,

described below, among others, the Defendants induced even more unsuspecting investors to

purchase more securities in a capital raise. In fact, on October 14, 2013, the Defendants completed

the sale of US$172.5 million in convertible bonds without disclosing the issues plaguing the

Company. This was just days before a corrective disclosure by third-party MWRG articulating the

Defendants' conduct in great detail. Knowing the exposé was imminent and everyday could prove to

be not only costly, but fatal to not only the offering, but the Company as well, Defendants rushed to

consummate the Offering. For the Defendants' scheme to work, which it did until October, 24, 2013,

Defendants had to not only maintain the inflated share price, but consummate the Offering before the

stock was shattered by the probe and pending MWRG report. Defendants knew MWRG reports had

historically exposed frauds taking share prices down to zero. If the Report had been issued just days

earlier, the defendants would unlikely have consummated the convertible offering. When the

revelations emerged from the MWRG Report, the shares dropped below to $8.46, the market value

for the Company's shares plunged from $1.1 billion to under $600 million. Attempting to push a

$200 million convertible debt offering on to the market for NQ following the MWRG Report would

have been implausible. Not only would it have then equated to 33% of its inflated value, now the

Company had shareholder lawsuits (in Massachusetts), class actions (in the Southern District of New

York) and investigations to defend. In fact, depending on the revised terms (assuming there were still

willing investors), an offering relative of this size could have been so prohibitively material and

dilutive, it could possibly have created "change of control" or like issues requiring shareholder vote.
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These factors would have not only delayed the Offering by months, indefinitely or been

consummated on terms so prohibitively expensive for the Company to digest, the acceptance terms

would cannibalize its purpose.

6. On October 24, 2013, NQ shares plummeted, their biggest daily decline ever, after

analysts from MWRG issued a report (the "MWRG Report") on the Company, stating it had

uncovered a "massive fraud" after not only due diligence but also visiting the Company, including its

core revenue source party, Yidatong, a shell company that NQ controls, according to the MWRG

Report. The report revealed that NQ's largest customer was actually NQ as it was using YDT to

engage in round trip transactions. This report was the product of months of investigation by MWRG

analysts after circling the globe, traveling through China and its purported offices, including its key

revenue partners including YDT and itself. After unearthing the YDT shell game claims, these

analysts personally visited at least 10 sites purportedly occupied by YDT, all of which "were empty

or did not exist." And the ones that did have real addresses had no electricity and no employees. The

MWRG Report concluded the offices were, like many of the other aspects of the Company, a sham.

7. In response, analysts began pulling their ratings. MWRG, in fact, started coverage of

the Company with a "strong sell" rating, calling the stock a "zero" and accusing it of falsifying

everything from its financial statements, bank accounts and such information as its market share and

paying user base in China. However, at the heart of this report, the Company was allegedly

manufacturing its own revenue and/or hiding its true relationship with Yidatong. In fact, according to

the MWRG Report, the "vast majority" of NQ's China revenue was fraudulent, with much of it

coming from Yidatong, a shell company that MWRG alleges in the report NQ has controlled and still

does. In summary, the MWRG Report concluded, "NQ's largest customer is really NQ."
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8. When the stock market opened on October 24, 2013, the last day of the Class Period,

NQ Mobile had a valuation of $1.1 billion. Just hours later, with the MWRG Report serving as a

corrective disclosure (via third party), half of its value was erased due to the scathing report by

MWRG which revealed a harsh assessment of NQ Mobile, calling it a "massive fraud." NQ Mobile

immediately experienced a stomach-turning plunge, with its shares falling more than 50 percent. The

stock, which opened the day at $23 a share on the last day of the Class Period, fell as low as $8.46

before recovering slightly to close at $12.09 on the NYSE.

9. On October 25, 2013, the Company held press conference at 5:00 a.m. PST trying to

stop the hemorrhaging which had eviscerated more than half a billion in market cap the day prior.

10. Defendants' statements made during the Class Period were materially false and/or

misleading when made because Defendants failed to disclose or indicate that: (i) NQ's largest

customer by far is really NQ. The MWRG Report estimates that NQ's real market share in China is

only about 1.5%, versus the approximately 55% it reports; (ii) NQ's China paying user base is less

than the millions claimed; (iii) NQ's Antivirus 7.0 is unsafe for sale to consumers, reportedly it is

considered to be spyware that makes users' phones vulnerable to cyber attack. Moreover, as

evidenced in the MWGR Report, NQ fails to adhere to basic security protocols; (iv) NQ's purported

international revenue is grossly overstated as are its Accounts Receivables. NQ claims to generate

international revenue in obscure markets, and through mysterious counterparties that seem to seldom

pay; (v) contrary to its Web site, NQ Mobile says it "strives to become the most trusted mobile

Internet platform for consumers and enterprises around the world, which as evidenced above is

grossly false and inaccurate; and (vi) as a result of (i) through (v) above, the Company's financial

statements are false and misleading and its internal controls are severely deficient.
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11. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements

and failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company's business, operations and prospects.

12. As a result of Defendants' wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous decline in

the market value of the Company's securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered

significant losses and damages.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange

Act (15 U.S.C. §§78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule lOb-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC (17 C.F.R.

§240.10b-5).

14. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa).

15. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) and Section

27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa(c)). Substantial acts in furtherance of the alleged fraud or

the effects of the fraud have occurred in this Judicial District. Many of the acts charged herein,

including the preparation and dissemination of materially false and/or misleading information,

occurred in substantial part in this Judicial District. NQ's shares are listed on the NYSE. The

transactions complained of by plaintiff and members of the Class were conducted on the NYSE.

16. In connection with the acts, transactions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants

directly and indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the

United States mail, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of a national securities

exchange.

6
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PARTIES

17. Plaintiff Rajendra N. Gangaramani, as set forth in the accompanying certification,

incorporated by reference herein, purchased NQ securities during the Class Period, and suffered

damages as a result of the federal securities law violations and false and/or misleading statements

and/or material omissions alleged herein.

18. Defendant NQ Mobile is a Cayman Islands corporation with principal executive

offices situated at No. 4 Building, 11 Heping Li East Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing 100013,

The People's Republic of China.

19. Defendant Omar Khan ("Khan') is the Company's Co-CEO. Khan signed the SOX

certifications during the Class Period attesting that NQ's financial statements were accurate and that

its systems of internal controls were adequate..

20. Defendant Henry Yu Lin ("Lin") is the Company's Co-Chief Executive Officer

("CEO"). Lin signed the Registration Statement as well as SOX certifications during the Class

Period attesting that NQ's financial statements were accurate and that its systems of internal controls

were adequate.

21. Defendant Suhai Ji ("Ji") is the Company's Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"). He has

served as NQ's CFO since November 2010, and prior to joining the Company, was a director in the

NYSE Beijing Representative Office, where he was responsible for the business development of

NYSE in China. Ji is responsible for the Company's overall financial and capital allocation strategy

as well as treasury, financial planning, tax, internal audit, investor relations and investments. .1 i

signed the Registration Statement as well as Sarbanes Oxley ("SOX") certifications during the Class

Period attesting that NQ's financial statements were accurate and that its systems of internal controls
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were adequate.

22. Defendants Henry Yu Lin, Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, and Omar Khan, Co-Chief Executive Officer are sometimes referred to hereinafter as the

"Individual Defendants." The Individual Defendants, because of their positions with the Company,

possessed the power and authority to control the contents of NQ's reports to the SEC, press releases

and presentations to securities analysts, money and portfolio managers and institutional investors,

i.e., the market. Defendants were provided with copies of the Company's reports and press releases

alleged herein to be misleading prior to, or shortly after, their issuance and had the ability and

opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected. Because of his positions and

access to material non-public information available to him, the Individual Defendants knew that the

adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to, and were being concealed from, the public,

and that the positive representations which were being made were then materially false and/or

misleading.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Back2round

23. Defendant NQ Mobile is a mobile Internet services company and a leading global

provider of mobile Internet services. NQ Mobile's portfolio includes mobile security and mobile

games as well as advertising for the consumer market and consulting, mobile platforms and mobility

services for the enterprise market. As of June 30, 2013, NQ Mobile maintained it had a large, global

user base of 372 million registered user accounts and 122 million monthly active user accounts

through its consumer mobile security business, 87 million registered user accounts and 16 million

monthly active user accounts through its mobile games and advertising business, and over 1,250
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enterprise customers.

24. During the Class Period, the MWRG staff was contacting the Company and related

parties and even visiting the offices of its key partner YDT, seeking answers to the truth behind the

true nature of NQ's relationship with YDT. What MWRG found was stunning. According to the

MWRG Report, this key partner's offices were nonexistent, or had no electricity and no employees;

moreover, its true relationship with YDT was hidden by the Defendants. Simultaneously, Defendants

were trying to prevent the imminent demise of their share price as MWRG had made their presence

known to the Defendants and their attempts to unearth, among other things, the lack of disclosure of

material facts reflecting a completely different picture of pristine health they had portrayed the

Company to be in. This was important to the Defendants as, throughout the Class Period, the

Defendants were in the process of attempting raise as much as $200 million vis-a-vis a convertible

offering under Rule 144a. Defendants were well aware of MWRG's past, which had an extremely

high success rate of issuing corrective disclosures via a third party analyst report (under their name).

These reports had the effect of educating the market as to the "truth" about the companies they had

written about and evidencing that, in general, they were a product of a fraudulent cabal. These

revelations would and did send share prices (in the companies they exposed) to as low as zero and/or

the companies into bankruptcy. Defendants rushed to get their 144a offering consummated,

attempting to raise as much as $200 million before MWRG released their report. Defendants' plan

was a success, at least for the moment. Just days before the MWRG Report was issued, sending the

shares down more than 50%, Defendants had duped investors into a capital raise of in excess of $173

million now equal to the equivalent of nearly 40% of the market capitalization.

25. MWRG reported the following true nature of NQ's relationship with Yidatong.

9
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According to the MWRG Report, the relationship was far more interrelated and dependent on each

other than the Defendants had previously revealed.

26. The MWRG Report, in relevant part, follows the relationship of NQ and YDT and

how a former employee/friend of the Defendants suddenly became an owner of YDT, allegedly a

separate company, and which the two companies (NQ and YDT) depended upon for their apparent

success. In summary, the MWRG Report revealed that the two companies were far more dependent

upon one another in fact the MWRG Report concluded that effectively the two companies were

one in the same.

MUDDY WATERS REPORTS REVELATIONS RELATING TO YDT, ITS INTERNAL

CONTROLS AND THE INTERRELATIONSHIP OF NQ AND YDT

27. According to the MWRG Report, as of December 2011, the Guangdong branch of

China Mobile showed YDT and NQ both as being based at NQ's Beijing office, with the same phone

numbers, and the same contact person (Chen An An). Moreover, YDT's 75% owner, Ms. Rong Xu,

also previously worked at NQ for approximately six months and suddenly became the majority

shareholder, owner and control person of NQ's key partner; moreover, YDT is clearly not a separate

business from NQ and the Defendants failed to identify the relationship between the two companies,

In fact, the MWRG Report details this conclusion with among other things, the fact that: (1) a list of

service providers that China Mobile publishes for Fujian province listing of Service Providers show

that YDT's telephone and fax numbers are (tel) 010-8565-5555 and (fax) 010-8565-5518. NQ's

Chinese webpage lists those very same numbers as it main numbers on its Contact page; (2) YDT's

email server is the exact same server as NQ's; (3) in August 2013, NQ denied the nature of its

relationship to YDT. NQ was responding to a limited circulation research report that raised a number

of questions about the Company, including its relationship with YDT; (4) the landline customer

10
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service number YDT provided to the Ministry of Information Industry and Telecommunications

("MIIT") is NQ's customer service number NQ customer service representatives answer this phone

when dialed; (5) Yidatong and NQ gave a Zhejiang government registry the same employee, Wang

Qiu, as the official contact person. Wang Qiu is likely an NQ employee, as both entities once again

used NQ's phone number as the contact number; (6) the company information sheet in YDT's

Shanghai SAIC files gives a NQ email address as the email contact: xuying@netqin.com. (Net Qin is

NQ's former name, and netqin.com is one of NQ's domains.); (7) NO hid the true nature about the

extent of YDT's majority owner, Ms. Rong Xu's, involvement with NQ, including the dates on

which she became involved with NQ, and when she left.

28. NQ's response stated the following:

(1) Ms. Xu worked at NQ for less than six months, as marketing

director, and then left NQ in 2007 in order to buy her stake in YDT;

(2) YDT is a separate and completely independent business from NQ; and

(3) NQ accounts for only 60% of YDT's revenue.

(4) NQ tried to convince investors that there was no overlap between Ms.

Xu's time at NQ and YDT. In reality, Ms. Xu's involvement with NQ

is not just overlap the MWRG Report concluded the two were

essentially inextricably intertwined.

THE TRUTH IS REVEALED

29. Then on October 24, 2013, MWRG issued a sell rating on the shares valuing them at

zero. When the stock market opened on Thursday, NQ Mobile had a valuation of $1.1 billion. Just

hours later, half of its value was erased. The MWRG Report followed an exhaustive research

11
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investigation which concluded that, among other things:

That NQ's largest customer by far is really NQ. The MWRG Report estimates

that NQ's real market share in China is only about 1.5%, versus the approximately 55% it reports.

(ii) That NQ's China paying user base is grossly is less than the millions claimed.

(iii) That NQ's Antivirus 7.0 is unsafe for sale to consumers, reportedly is

considered to be spyware that makes users' phones vulnerable to cyber attack. Moreover, as

evidenced in the MWGR Report, NQ fails to adhere to basic security protocols.

(iv) That NQ's purported international revenue is grossly overstated as are its

Accounts Receivables. NQ claims to generate international revenue in obscure markets, and through

mysterious counterparties that seem to seldom pay.

(v) That contrary to its Web site, NQ Mobile says it "strives to become the most

trusted mobile Internet platform for consumers and enterprises around the world, which as evidenced

above is grossly false and inaccurate.

(vi) That as a result of (i) through (v), above, the Company's financial statements

are false and misleading as a product of among other things, its internal controls are severely

deficient.

30. When the stock market opened on October 24, 2013, the last day of the Class Period,

NQ Mobile had a valuation of $1.1 billion. Just hours later, with the MWRG Report serving as a

corrective disclosure, half of its value was erased due to MWRG's harsh assessment of NQ Mobile,

calling it a "massive fraud." NQ Mobile immediately experienced a stomach-turning plunge, with its

shares falling more than 50 percent and eviscerating more than half a billion in market capitalization.

The stock, which opened the day at $23 a share the last day of the Class Period, fell as low as $8.46
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before recovering slightly to close at $12.09 on the NYSE.

Materially False and Misleading Statements Issued During the Class Period

31. On May 5, 2011, NQ Mobile went public via filed a Registration Statement on Form

F-1 with the SEC and signed by among others, Defendants Lin, Khan, and Ji. Among other things,

although the Registration Statement purported to describe the Company's relationship with its largest

customer, a Yidatong, it to disclose the true nature of the relationship: For example, the Registration

Statement stated:

Net revenues generated through our top mobile payment service provider, Tianjin
Yidatong Technology Development Co., Ltd., or Yidatong, as a percentage of our

total net revenues, were 52.7%, 20.0% and 21.4% in 2008, 2009 and 2010,
respectively. Yidatong charges us at a lower fee rate than other mobile payment
service providers through which we cooperate with wireless carriers. The principal
shareholder of Yidatong was our consultant in 2006 and 2007 and received certain
share options and consulting fees in connection with her services. In addition, we

provided Yidatong with an interest-free advance in order to fund Yidatong's short-
term liquidity needs and to further cultivate our long-term commercial relationship
with Yidatong.

32. On March 30, 2012, the Company filed its annual report with the SEC on Form 20-F

(the "2011 Annual Report"). Among other things, the 2011 Annual Report, which was signed by

defendant Lin and contained Sarbanes-Oxley certifications signed by Defendants Lin, Khan and Ji,

repeated the financial results from a Company press release issued March 5, 2012, and stated, in

part:

Net revenues collected through our top mobile payment service provider, Yidatong,
contributed 20.0%, 21.4% and 25.8% of our total net revenues in 2009, 2010 and
2011, respectively. Yidatong charges us a lower fee rate than other mobile payment
service providers through which we cooperate with wireless carriers.

33. The March 30, 2012, Form 20-F included certifications signed by Defendants Henry

Yu Lin and Omar Khan, wherein Defendants Lin and Khan certified the Company's financial results

13
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and internal controls pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and stated that:

I, Henry Yu Lin, and I, Omar Khan, each certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of NetQin Mobile Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a

material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the

periods presented in this report;

4. The company's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those

entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) [intentionally omitted];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and

procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company's internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this

annual report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the company's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our

most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company's
auditors and the audit committee of the company's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or

14
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operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the company's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or

other employees who have a significant role in the company's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2012

34. On May 10, 2012, NQ filed a Registration Statement on Form F-1 with the Securities

and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"), pursuant to Rule 477 under the Securities Act of

1933, to raise as much as $90 million in a follow-on offering.

35. However, approximately three weeks later, on May 30, 2012, the Company issued a

press release announcing that it was withdrawing the offering. The press release stated the following:

NQ Mobile Announces Withdrawal of Proposed Follow-on Offering

BEIJING and DALLAS, May 30, 2012 NQ Mobile Inc. ("NQ Mobile" or the

"Company", formerly known as NetQin Mobile Inc.) (NYSE: NQ), a leading global
provider of mobile Internet services focusing on security, privacy and productivity,
today announced that it has decided to withdraw its contemplated follow-on offering,
a registration statement relating to which was filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 10, 2012.

"In light of the recent market conditions and the current trading price for our

American depositary shares, our board has decided that it is not in the best interest of
our company or our shareholders to proceed with the offering, said Dr. Henry Lin,
Chairman and Co-CE0 of NQ Mobile. "We continue to see strong growth
momentum across all of our security, privacy and productivity offerings year to date
and remain focused on growing our business globally".

36. On April 19, 2013, in a Form 20-F filed by NQ, Defendants Lin and Khan each

signed certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and substantially

similar to the certifications described in 1133, supra, stating that they had complied with Sarbanes-
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Oxley.

37. In the same 20-F, the Company only reveals part of its true relationship with

Yidatong, and stated in part:

We depend on wireless carriers and mobile payment service providers as well as

other third party service providers for the collection of a substantial portion of our

consumer mobile security revenues, and any loss or deterioration of our relationship
with wireless carriers, mobile payment service providers or any of these third-party
service providers may result in disruptions to our business operations and the loss of

revenues.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, a substantial portion of our

revenues were collected through the payment channels of wireless carriers, and other
third party service providers, including pre-paid card distributors and other mobile
service providers. We cooperate with wireless carriers, either directly or through
mobile payment service providers. Wireless carriers provide us with billing and
collection services for a fixed percentage of the total billing. If we cooperate with

wireless carriers through mobile payment service providers and pre-paid card

distributors, we share the payments with them. Approximately 60%, 40.2% and

30.4% of our net revenues were collected through wireless carriers and mobile

payment service providers in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. If the payment
channels or collection systems of wireless carriers, mobile payment service providers
or any third-party service providers we use for the collection of our revenues

becomes unavailable or malfunctions, we may experience delays associated with

attempts to resolve the problems, which may result in a loss of revenues to us. This

problem may be particularly serious if a wireless carrier is involved, because several

large wireless carriers hold dominant positions in their respective markets and
therefore may occupy a relatively important position in our revenue collection. In

addition, any loss or deterioration of our relationships with wireless carriers, mobile

payment service providers, pre-paid card distributors and other mobile service

providers may result in disruptions to our business operations, the loss of our

revenues and a material and adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations.

Our relationships with mobile payment service providers and pre-paid card

distributors are also critical for us to collect revenues. For example, net revenues

generated through our top mobile payment service provider, Tianjin Yidatong
Technology Development Co., Ltd., or Yidatong, as a percentage of our total net

revenues, were 21.4%, 25.8% and 22.1% in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.
Yidatong charges us at a lower fee rate than other mobile payment service providers
through which we cooperate with wireless carriers. Our agreements with mobile
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payment service providers are generally for terms of one to five years and we

generally renew these agreements when they expire. Our agreement with Yidatong,
for example, has a term of five years and will expire in June 2015. Ifmobile payment
service providers, especially those through which we generate significant revenues,
do not perform their contracts with us due to any reason, our business and results of

operations may be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if mobile payment
service providers and pre-paid card distributors increase the fee rates they charge us

or if our relationships with them deteriorate, our business and results of operations
would be adversely affected.

38. Then, during late Summer and into the Fall of 2013, the Company was preparing its

$200 million convertible note offering. Defendants were seeking to consummate the offering making

it less dilutive than necessary by maintaining the highest share price possible. Defendants would

have one opportunity to explain the CFO transition and simultaneously attempt to induce or

otherwise convince shareholders that everything at the Company was on solid ground. Once

Defendants were tipped off that they were being investigated by third parties, their motivation to

complete the Offering quickly increased. In fact, throughout much of the Class Period Defendants

knew private investigators were probing them, but it wasn't until the last part of the Class Period that

Defendants knew that MWRG was orchestrating the probe. Knowing "who" was behind the probe

struck fear in Defendants. Defendants were just motivated to get the offering consummated, or at the

best terms, as soon as feasibly possible, but to consummate the Offering was their goal and doing so

before MWRG released its findings became the Defendants' sole priority. Attempting to tap the

markets for hundreds of millions of dollars after Defendants' scandal was exposed was not a realistic

probability, or fundamentally possible if the Defendants could not defend the claims that the

Company's cash and other valuations was fictitious.

39. Prior MWRG exposés have vaporized companies, especially Chinese companies.

Realizing just what they were up against, Defendants realized as long as they were able to bilk
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another $200 million from unsuspecting shareholders, (knowing full well that MWRG was issuing

an exposé on the Company and that consummating the Offering before MWRG's report was issued

would be successful endeavor), albeit adding to their list of fraudulent conduct. Thus instead of using

a Registration Statement as they had in their prior offerings, including the IPO in 2011 and the

Secondary in 2012, defendants sought to and did seek to raise the needed financing through an

expedited 144a offering, thereby by-passing possible time delays Defendants experienced in their

IPO and Secondary offerings. Knowing the exposé was imminent and that every day could prove to

be not only costly, but possibly fatal to not only the offering, but the Company as well, Defendants

rushed to consummate the Offering. For the Defendants' scheme to work, which it did until October,

24, 2013, Defendants had to not only maintain the inflated share price, but consummate the Offering

before the stock was shattered by pending MWRG report. Defendants knew MWRG reports had

historically exposed frauds taking share prices down to zero. If the report had been issued just days

earlier, the defendants would unlikely have consummated the convertible offering. When the

revelations emerged from the MWRG Report the shares dropped below to $8.46 the market value for

the Company's shares plunged from $1.1 billion to under $600 million. Attempting to push a $200

million convertible debt offering on to the market post MWRG Report would have been implausible.

Not only would have then equated to 33% of its inflated value, and now had shareholder lawsuits (in

Massachusetts), class actions (in the Southern District of New York) and investigations to defend. In

fact, depending on the revised terms (assuming there were still willing investors), an offering relative

of this size could have been so prohibitively material and dilutive, it could possibly have created

"change of control" or like issues requiring shareholder vote. These factors would have not only

delayed the Offering by months, indefinitely or been consummated terms so prohibitively expensive
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for the Company to digest, the acceptance terms would cannibalized its purpose.

40. On September 20, 2013, in preparation for the capital raise and knowing full well that

the MWRG Report was imminent, Defendants not only put a positive spin on loss of its CFO,

Defendants sought to appease investors by announcing that the Company expected revenues to

exceed the top end of its previous guidance of $50-$51 million for Q3 2013, in a press release that

stated in part:

NQ Mobile now expects revenues to exceed the top end of its guidance range of

$50-$51mm for Q3 2013; appoints KB Teo as Chief Financial Officer

BEIJING and DALLAS, September 20, 2013 /PRNewswire/ NO Mobile Inc. (NQ
Mobile) (NYSE: NQ), a leading global provider of mobile Internet services, today
announced that it now expects third quarter 2013 revenues to exceed its

previously issued guidance range of $50-$51 million. The company also has
hired KB Teo to the position of CFO. Current CFO, Suhai Ji, will work with
Mr. Teo for a period of time to ensure a smooth transition and remain as a

senior advisor to the company.

"Today's announcement is another important step forward for NQ Mobile as

we continue to execute on our plan to become a leading global mobile Internet

services platform company, said Dr. Henry Lin, Co-CEO. "Suhai performed
remarkably well in getting our company to this point. KB brings experience,
knowledge, and the necessary qualities to help our company continue to globalize and

expand. Having already earned the respect and trust of our team during the initial

public offering process, this is another key executive hire that comes with existing
passion and credibility specific to NQ Mobile."

Prior to joining NQ Mobile as CFO, Mr. Teo was a Managing Director and acted as

Co-Head of Asia Investment Banking for Piper Jaffray. He was also a director of
TMT Investment Banking for Deutsche Bank AG and executive director for
Goldman Sachs. While at Piper Jaffray, he served as the lead banker for the NQ
Mobile's initial public offering on the New York Stock Exchange in 2011. Mr
Teo is a CFA® charter holder and received his MBA degree from Kellogg school of

management in 2002.

"I am thrilled to be joining the incredible team at NQ Mobile, said KB Teo.

"Having followed the company from before their initial public offering, I have
admired the management team and their vision and strategy. I look forward to

working with this team and contributing to the continued growth of the
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company."

"Our business momentum continues and we are excited by the performance of
our businesses up to this point in the quarter leading to a better than expected
forecast. We welcome KB to our team as the new CFO, said Omar Khan, Co-
CEO. "We appreciate the great work Suhai performed during his tenure. He
helped properly position us for the next phase of our growth and development.
KB's professional knowledge of our company uniquely positions him in the CFO

position. We are confident he will continue to help us execute at the high degree that
we all demand at NQ Mobile."

About NQ Mobile

NQ Mobile Inc. (NYSE: NQ) is a leading global provider ofmobile Internet services.
NQ Mobile is a mobile security pioneer with proven competency to acquire,
engage, and monetize customers globally. NQ Mobile's portfolio includes mobile
security and mobile games as well as advertising for the consumer market and

consulting, mobile platforms and mobility services for the enterprise market. As of
June 30, 2013, NQ Mobile maintained a large, global user base of 372 million

registered user accounts and 122 million monthly active user accounts through
its consumer mobile security business, 87 million registered user accounts and
16 million monthly active user accounts through its mobile games and

advertising business and over 1,250 enterprise customers. NQ Mobile maintains
dual headquarters in Dallas, Texas, USA and Beijing, China. For more information
on NQ Mobile, please visit http://www.nq.com/.

41. On October 16, 2013, the Company announced a massive capital raise totaling $172.5

million, in a press release that stated in part:

NQ MOBILE INC. ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF OFFERING OF US$172.5
MILLION OF CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES

BEIJING and DALLAS October 16, 2013: NQ Mobile Inc. (NYSE: NQ), a leading
global provider of mobile Internet services ("NO" or the "Company"), today
announced the completion of the offering of US$172.5 million in aggregate principal
amount of convertible senior notes due 2018 (the "notes"), following the exercise in
full of the option that the Company previously granted to the initial purchasers,
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., to

purchase up to an additional US$22.5 million in aggregate principal amount of notes.

42. When the stock market opened on October 24, 2013, the last day of the Class Period,

NQ Mobile had a valuation of $1.1 billion. Just hours later, with the MWRG Report serving as a
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corrective disclosure, half of its value was erased due to MWRG's harsh assessment of NQ Mobile,

calling it a "massive fraud." NQ Mobile immediately experienced a stomach-turning plunge, with its

shares falling more than 50 percent. The stock, which opened the day at $23 a share the last day of

the Class Period, fell as low as $8.46 before recovering slightly to close at $12.09 on the NYSE.

Over the days that followed the shares continued to decline, reverting back to where the shares traded

in April 2013 at the beginning of the Class Period.

43. Knowing full well the likely impact of the exposure of the MWRG Report, before the

MWRG Report was released, the Company completed a last minute sale of US$172.5 million in

convertible bonds immediately before the end of the Class period and in order to raise this capital

prior to the MWRG Report being released. However, according to the Report and stunning

admissions by the defendants, the Defendants' statements made during the Class Period were

materially false and/or misleading when made because Defendants failed to disclose or indicate that:

(i) NQ's largest customer by far is NQ, itself. The MWRG Report estimates that NQ's real market

share in China is only about 1.5%, versus the approximately 55% it reports; (ii) NQ's China paying

user base is less than the millions claimed; (iii) NQ's Antivirus 7.0 is unsafe for sale to consumers,

reportedly is considered it to be spyware that makes users' phones vulnerable to cyber attack.

Moreover, as evidenced in the MWGR Report, NQ fails to adhere to basic security protocols; (iv)

NQ's purported international revenue is grossly overstated as are its Accounts Receivables. NQ

claims to generate international revenue in obscure markets, and through mysterious counterparties

that seem to seldom pay; (v) contrary to its Web site, NQ Mobile says it "strives to become the most

trusted mobile Internet platform for consumers and enterprises around the world, which as evidenced

above is grossly false and inaccurate; and (vi) as a result of (i) through (v) above, the Company's
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financial statements are false and misleading and its internal controls are severely deficient

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

44. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class, consisting of all those who purchased NQ securities

during the Class Period and who were damaged thereby (the Class). Excluded from the Class are

Defendants, the officers and directors of the Company, at all relevant times, members of their

immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in

which Defendants have or had a controlling interest.

45. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is

impracticable. Throughout the Class Period NQ securities were actively traded on the NYSE Stock

Exchange (the NYSE). While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this

time and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are

hundreds or thousands of members in the proposed Class. Millions of NQ shares were traded

publicly during the Class Period on the NYSE, and the Company has more approximately 31 million

shares outstanding. Record owners and other members of the Class may be identified from records

maintained by NQ or its transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail,

using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in securities class actions.

46. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all members

of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants' wrongful conduct in violation of federal law that is

complained of herein.

47. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class

and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.
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48. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the

questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

(a) Whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants' acts as alleged

herein;

(b) Whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the Class

Period omitted and/or misrepresented material facts about the business, operations, and

prospects of NQ; and

(c) To what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the proper

measure of damages.

49. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as the

damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and burden of

individual litigation makes it impossible for members of the Class to individually redress the wrongs

done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE FACTS

50. In connection with the acts, transactions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants

directly and indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the

United States mail, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of a national securities

exchange.

51. The market for NQ securities was open, well developed and efficient at all relevant

times. As a result of these materially false and/or misleading statements, and/or failures to disclose,
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NQ securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period. Plaintiff and other

members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired NQ securities relying upon the integrity of the

market price of the Company's securities and market information relating to NQ, and have been

damaged thereby.

52. During the Class Period, Defendants materially misled the investing public, thereby

inflating the price of NQ securities, by publicly issuing false and/or misleading statements and/or

omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make Defendants' statements, as set forth herein, not

false and/or misleading. Said statements and omissions were materially false and/or misleading in

that they failed to disclose material adverse information and/or misrepresented the truth about NQ's

business, operations, and prospects as alleged herein.

53. At all relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized in

this Complaint directly or proximately caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the

damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class. As described herein, during the Class

Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or misleading

statements about NQ's financial well-being and prospects. These material misstatements and/or

omissions had the cause and effect of creating in the market an unrealistically positive assessment of

the Company and its financial well-being and prospects, thus causing the Company's securities to be

overvalued and artificially inflated at all relevant times. Defendants' materially false and/or

misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the Class

purchasing the Company's securities at artificially inflated prices, thus causing the damages

complained of herein.
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LOSS CAUSATION

54. Defendants' wrongful conduct, as alleged herein, directly and proximately caused the

economic loss suffered by Plaintiff and the Class. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and the Class

purchased NQ securities at artificially inflated prices and were damaged thereby. The price of the

Company's securities significantly declined when the misrepresentations made to the market, and/or

the information alleged herein to have been concealed from the market, and/or the effects thereof,

were revealed, causing investors's losses.

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS

55. As alleged herein, Defendants acted with scienter in that Defendants knew that the

public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company were

materially false and/or misleading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or

disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced in

the issuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as primary violations of the federal

securities laws. As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, Defendants, by virtue of their receipt of

information reflecting the true facts regarding NQ, his control over, and/or receipt and/or

modification of NQ's allegedly materially misleading misstatements and/or their associations with

the Company which made them privy to confidential proprietary information concerning NQ,

participated in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.

APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE
(FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE)

56. The market for NQ securities was open, well developed and efficient at all relevant

times. As a result of the materially false and/or misleading statements and/or failures to disclose, NQ

securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period. Plaintiff and other members of
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the Class purchased or otherwise acquired the Company's securities relying upon the integrity of the

market price of NQ securities and market information relating to NQ, and have been damaged

thereby.

57. During the Class Period, the artificial inflation of NQ stock was caused by the

material misrepresentations and/or omissions particularized in this Complaint causing the damages

sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class. As described herein, during the Class Period,

Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or misleading statements

about NQ's business, operations and financial condition. These material misstatements and/or

omissions created an unrealistically positive assessment of NQ and its business, operations, and

financial condition, thus causing the price of the Company's securities to be artificially inflated at all

relevant times, and when disclosed, negatively affected the value of the Company stock. Defendants'

materially false and/or misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in Plaintiff and other

members of the Class purchasing the Company's securities at such artificially inflated prices, and

each of them has been damaged as a result.

58. At all relevant times, the market for NO securities was an efficient market for the

following reasons, among others:

(a) NQ stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and actively traded

on the NYSE, a highly efficient and automated market;

(b) As a regulated issuer, NQ filed periodic public reports with the SEC and/or the

NYSE;

(c) NQ routinely communicated with public investors via established market

communication mechanisms, including through regular dissemination of press releases on the
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national circuits of major newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such

as communications with the financial press and other similar reporting services; and/or

(d) NQ was followed by securities analysts employed by brokerage firms who

wrote reports about the Company, and these reports were distributed to the sales force and certain

customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was publicly available and

entered the public marketplace.

59. As a result of the foregoing, the market for NQ securities promptly digested current

information regarding NQ from all publicly available sources and reflected such information in NQ'

stock price. Under these circumstances, all purchasers of NQ securities during the Class Period

suffered similar injury through their purchase of NQ securities at artificially inflated prices and a

presumption of reliance applies.

NO SAFE HARBOR

60. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint. The

statements alleged to be false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and conditions. In

addition, to the extent certain of the statements alleged to be false may be characterized as forward

looking, they were not identified as "forward-looking statements" when made and there were no

meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to

differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking statements. In the alternative, to the

extent that the statutory safe harbor is determined to apply to any forward-looking statements pleaded

herein, Defendants are liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time each of

those forward-looking statements was made, the speaker had actual knowledge that the forward-
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looking statement was materially false or misleading, and/or the forward-looking statement was

authorized or approved by an executive officer of NQ who knew that the statement was false when

made.

FIRST CLAIM

Violation of Section 10(b) of The Exchange Act
and Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder

Against All Defendants

61. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully set

forth herein.

62. During the Class Period, Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course ofconduct

which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public,

including Plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (ii) cause Plaintiff and other

members of the Class to purchase NQ securities at artificially inflated prices. In furtherance of this

unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and each of them, took the actions set

forth herein.

63. Defendants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made untrue

statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the statements not

misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which operated as a fraud

and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company's securities in an effort to maintain artificially high

market prices for NQ securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lOb-5.

All Defendants are sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged

herein or as controlling persons as alleged below.

64. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means or
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instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a

continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about NQ's financial

well-being and performance, as specified herein.

65. These Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in

possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a course of

conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of NQ' value and performance and

continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or the participation in the making of,

untrue statements of material facts and/or omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make

the statements made about NQ and its business operations and financial performance and condition

in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, as set forth more

particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business which operated as

a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company's securities during the Class Period.

66. Each of the Individual Defendants' primary liability, and controlling person liability,

arises from the following facts: (i) the Individual Defendants were high-level executives and/or

directors at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company's management team

or had control thereof; (ii) each of these defendants, by virtue of their responsibilities and activities

as a senior officer and/or director of the Company, was privy to and participated in the creation,

development and reporting of the Company's internal budgets, plans, projections and/or reports; (iii)

each of these defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and familiarity with the other

defendants and was advised of, and had access to, other members of the Company's management

team, internal reports and other data and information about the Company's finances, operations, and

sales at all relevant times; and (iv) each of these defendants was aware of the Company's
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dissemination of information to the investing public which they knew and/or recklessly disregarded

was materially false and misleading.

67. The Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions of

material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to

ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such defendants'

material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and for the purpose

and effect of concealing NQ' financial well-being from the investing public and supporting the

artificially inflated price of its securities. As demonstrated by Defendants' overstatements and/or

misstatements of the Company's business, operations, financial well-being, and prospects throughout

the Class Period, Defendants, if they did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or

omissions alleged, were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from

taking those steps necessary to discover whether those statements were false or misleading.

68. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and/or misleading information

and/or failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of NQ securi ties was

artificially inflated during the Class Period. In ignorance of the fact that market prices of the

Company's securities were artificially inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and

misleading statements made by Defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the

securities trades, and/or in the absence of material adverse information that was known to or

recklessly disregarded by Defendants, but not disclosed in public statements by Defendants during

the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class acquired NQ securities during the

Class Period at artificially high prices and were damaged thereby.

69. At the time of said misrepresentations and/or omissions, Plaintiff and other members
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of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had Plaintiff and the other

members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problems that NQ was

experiencing, which were not disclosed by Defendants, Plaintiff and other members of the Class

would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their NQ securities, or, if they had acquired such

securities during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated prices

which they paid.

70. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange

Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

71. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and the

other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and sales

of the Company's securities during the Class Period.

SECOND CLAIM

Violation of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act
Against the Individual Defendants

72. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully set

forth herein.

73. The Individual Defendant acted as a controlling person of NQ within the meaning of

Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of his high-level positions, and his

ownership and contractual rights, participation in and/or awareness of the Company's operations

and/or intimate knowledge of the false statements filed by the Company with the SEC and

disseminated to the investing public, the Individual Defendant had the power to influence and control

and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision making of the Company, including

the content and dissemination of the various statements which Plaintiff contends are false and
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misleading. The Individual Defendant was provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the

Company's reports, press releases, public filings and other statements alleged by Plaintiff to be

misleading prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent

the issuance of the statements or cause the statements to be corrected.

74. In particular, the Individual Defendant had direct and supervisory involvement in the

day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control

or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein, and

exercised the same.

75. As set forth above, NQ and the Individual Defendant each violated Section 10(b) and

Rule 10b-5 by their acts and/or omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of his positions as a

controlling person, the Individual Defendant is liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.

As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and other members of the

Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the Company's securities during the

Class Period.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:

(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action under Rule 23 of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure;

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class members

against all Defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of Defendants'

wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon;

(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in this
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action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

DATED: November/2013 GLANCY BINKOW & GOLDBERG LLP

41, ?4 AALLI
'B II: P. ^1 urray (BM9554)

Gregory Linkh (GL0477)
122 E 42nd Street, Suite 2920
New York, New York 10168

Tel: (212) 682-5340
Fax: (212) 884-0988
Email: glinkh@glancylaw.com

-and-

GLANCY BINKOW & GOLDBERG LLP

Lionel Z. Glancy
Michael Goldberg
Robert V. Prongay
Casey E. Sadler
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
Los Angeles, CA 90067
Tel: (310) 201-9150
Tel: (310) 201-9160
Email: info@glancylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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GLANCY BINKOW & GO( DBERG LLP

SWORN CERTIFICATION OF PLAINTIFF

NQ MOBILE INC. SECURITIES LITIGATION

I, Rajendra N Gangaramani

certify that:

[Please Print Your Name]

1. I have reviewed the Complaint and authorized its filing.

2. I did not purchase NQ Mobile Inc. the security that is the subject of this action, at the direction of

plaintiff's counsel or in order to participate in any private action arising under the federal securities laws.

3- I am willing to serve as a representative party on behalf of a class and will testify at deposition a nd

trial, if necessary.

4. My transactions in NQ Mobile inc. during the Class Period set forth in the Complaint are as follows:

I bought 100 shares on 22/10/2013 at 23.48 per share

I bought 200 shares on 22/10/2013 at 23.80 per share

I sold 300 shares on 24/10/2013 at 14.78 per share

I sold shares on at per share

(List Additional Transactions On Separate Page If Necessary)
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S. have not served as a representative party on behalf of a class under federal securities laws during
the last three years, except for the following:

6. I will not accept any payment for serving as a representative party, except to receive my pro-rata
share of any recovery or as ordered or approved by the court, including the award to a representative

plaintiff of reasonable costs and expenses (including lost wages) directly relating to the representation
of the class..

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing are true and correct staternents

Dated: 30/102013

Raiendra N Gangaramani

[Please Sign Your Name Above]


